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Addendum-1 

 
Consolidated Reply to Pre-Bid Queries/clarification related to DAFFPL Tender for Insurance   

Tender No. DAFFPL/FF/INS/2025-26/01 
 
With Respect to above mentioned tender, we have received various queries from insurance companies 
through email and at the time of the pre-bid meeting held on 9th June’2025. We provide clarification in line 
with queries raised as per below:  

 

1. Dead / Hold up Stock of Aviation Turbine Fuel (ATF) having flash point of about 37°C- Approximately 
65% in the pipelines laid inside and outside the IGI Airport and 35% in the fuel farm in the storage 
tank & Mobile Equipment (total quantity approximately 10678 KL). Ref page no 16. 
Query- Whether the outside above includes airport areas only, if otherwise kindly confirm the 
area to be covered. 

 
Reply: The Pipelines origin from the insured premises and up to all terminals (T1, T2, T3 & Cargo 
Terminal). Further, pipelines are laid underground within the IGI airport land. 

 
2. Claims- Nil Claims as on date in the last 5 years. Ref page no 17 

Query- One claim was lodged with the 2023-2024 policy for 5 Cr. In case the same is No longer 
pursued or closed, kindly confirm the same. 
 
Reply: As discussed in pre-bid meeting there are nil claims in past 5years. Kindly refer to the tender 
document issued and information provided. 

3. Note: The O&M costs may not be appearing in the P&L statement as the same has been recorded as 
net off revenue in the P&L of DAFFPL. DAFFPL would be claiming O&M’s cost in the event of a loss, 
as such costs are fixed in nature. Ref Page no 17 
Query- Whether the O&M cost is included in Sum Insured and how the same is arrived at for 
adequacy of value. 
 
Reply: Business Interruption sum insured is inclusive of O&M Costs.    
 

4. Unoccupancy Clause- Ref page no 17 
Query- Kindly confirm whether the same is required for upto 30 days & whether there is any 
specific scenario for unoccupancy of the risk. 
  
Reply: Kindly refer page no 23 of tender document for more clarity 
  

5. Automatic cover for unspecified/unnamed locations - 365 days- Ref page no 17 
Query- Kindly confirm the nature of assets to be covered? 
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Reply: All assets are lying within insured premises and up to all terminals (T1, T2, T3 & Cargo 
Terminal) including pipelines laid underground within the IGI airport land. For description of assets, 
please refer page no.12 of tender document.  

 
6. Non-Vitiation / Multiple Insured Clause- Ref page no 17 

Query- How Multiple Insured is involved and names to be provided at inception of risk. 
  

Reply: Kindly refer page no 6 of tender document which says Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private 
Limited (DAFFPL) is a Joint Venture comprising Indian Oil Corporation Ltd. (IOCL), Bharat Petroleum 
Corporation Ltd. (BPCL), and Delhi International Airport Ltd and in the currency of the policy any of 
the JV’s may ask inclusion of their name in policy so to avoid any mid-term inclusion of this clause, 
this has been included. 
  

7. Insurance Of Additional Expenses of Rent for An Alternative Accommodation- INR 5 Crores EEL- Ref 
page no 18 
Query- How it will come into play after the claim? 
  
Reply: in case of any unfortunate incidence, DAFFPL may have to take alternative accommodation, 
accordingly its needed 
  

8. Loss of rent- INR 5 Crores EEL- Ref page no 18 
Query- Is any property of the proposer is extended on rent too & whether the same is proposed 
for coverage under this proposal. 
  
Reply: As discussed in pre-bid meeting, DAFFPL has rented office space in admin building to different 
stakeholders like Oil Marketing Companies & Into Plane Agent for their operation at Fuel Farm & IGI 
Airport. 
  

9. Additional Insured- Ref page no 18 
Query- How Additional Insured Involved and names to be provided at inception of risk. 
 
Reply: Kindly refer page no 6 of tender document which says Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private 
Limited (DAFFPL) is a Joint Venture comprising Indian Oil Corporation Ltd. (IOCL), Bharat Petroleum 
Corporation Ltd. (BPCL), and Delhi International Airport Ltd and in the currency of the policy any of 
the JV’s may ask inclusion of their name in policy so to avoid any mid term inclusion of this clause, 
this has been included 
 

10. Abandonment of Property- Ref page no 18 
Query- Same is exclusion under the Property insurance. kindly arrange for deletion. 
  
Reply: As per tender document 
 

11. OEM parts upto 30%- Ref page no 19 
Query- Kindly consider for 25% 
  
 Reply: Current policy covers same, hence continuity needed 
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12. Civil Commotion- INR 5 crs- Ref page no 20 
Query- not included in property insurance.  
  
Reply: Current policy covers same, hence continuity needed 
  

13. Defence Cost- INR 5 crs- Ref page no 20 
Query- Same is exclusion under the Property insurance. kindly arrange for deletion. 
  
Reply: Current policy covers same, hence continuity needed 
 

14. Group Dependency Aggregate-INR 10 crs- Ref Page no 21 
Query- Reason for extension, since Interdependency already proposed. 

  
Reply: Current policy covers same, hence continuity needed 
 

15. Add-Ons where limit is unspecified Ref- Page no 17- 21 
Query- Limit of Rs. 5 Cr. shall be applicable 
  
Reply: It’s been kept open ended which states Minimum of INR 5 crores and maximum can be any 
limits as per Insurer capacity 
  

16. Basement Exclusion warranty removal- Ref page no 18 
Query- Is there any basement exposure? Kindly share details. 
  
Reply: Premises include underground pipelines and assets also. 
   

17. VII. Waiver of Betterment Charges- Ref page no 43 
Query- Can not be agreed  
  
Reply: Involuntary betterment is covered under current policy, hence continuity needed 
  

18. XI. Waiver of FIR- Ref page no 43 
Query- Can be agreed upto limit of Rs. 1 Lakh.  
 
Reply: Current policy covers same, hence continuity needed 
  

19. VIII. Omission to Insure @ 5% and IX. Inadvertent Omission to Insure @ 5%- Ref page no 43 
Query- Can not be agreed under the Misc. Policies. 
  
Reply: current policy covers same, hence continuity needed 
   

20. Policy Limits: AOA:AOY(1:1) – Rs. 164 Crores: Rs. 164 Crores- Ref page no 44 
Query- AOA:AOY 1:2 requests since it is a treaty condition. 
  
Reply: required as per tender 
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21. Claims VS Premium for last 3 years.- 
 
Reply: claims information already provided in Tender document. You are required to quote your 
best competitive premium. 
 

22. Sum Insured details in excel. 
 
Reply: Refer Tender Document. 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
Vishvajit 
Chief Executive Officer 
DAFFPL 

 
 

 


